
 

Page 1 of 1 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 11, 2022 

5:30 PM AT CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes of April 13, 2022 

Public Comments 

Old Business 

2. Amendment of RP Master Plan for Autumn Ridge Development (DEFERRED) 
Location: South of W. 1st Street and West of Union Road 
Applicant: BKND, Inc., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 
Previous discussion: November 24, 2020, March 9, 2022 
Recommendation: Defer discussion to the next P&Z meeting 
P&Z Action: None 

3. Preliminary Plat for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions (PP20-004)(DEFERRED) 
Location: South of W. 1st Street and West of Union Road 
Applicant: BKND, Inc., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 
Previous discussion: November 24, 2020, March 9, 2022 
Recommendation: Defer discussion to the next P&Z meeting 
P&Z Action: None 

4. Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition Final Plat (FP22-001)  
Location:  South of 12th Street and West of Union Road 
Applicant:  Midwest Development Co. (Owner) and CGA consultants (Engineer) 
Previous Discussion:  April 6, 2022 
Recommendation: Approval 
P&Z Action: Discuss and make a recommendation to City Council 

Commission Updates 

Adjournment 

Reminders: 

* May 25 and June 8- Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
* May 16 and June 6 - City Council Meetings 

1



 1 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 

April 13, 2022 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
MINUTES 

 
The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on April 13, 2022 at 5:30 
p.m. at the Community Center. The following Commission members were present: Crisman, 
Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul. Thomas Weintraut, Planner III, 
Jaydevsinh Atodaria, Planner I and Chris Sevy, Planner I, were also present.  
 
1.) Chair Leeper noted the Minutes from the March 23, 2022 regular meeting are presented. Ms. 

Lynch made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, 
Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays.  

 
2.) The first item of business was the Cedar Falls Bicycle Plan. Chair Leeper introduced the item 

and Mr. Sevy provided background information. He gave brief comments and stated that the 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee voted unanimously to recommend approval and 
City staff is recommending approval as well.  

 
 Mr. Holst stated his appreciation to the Committee and staff for all the work that was put in to 

the plan.  
  
 Ms. Saul asked if there is a schedule published on the website. Mr. Sevy stated that there is 

not at this time. 
 
 Mr. Holst made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, 
Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 
3.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was the Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition 

Final Plat. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided background 
information. He explained that the property is located south of West 12th Street and west of 
Union Road. The petitioner proposes to subdivide 8.13 acres of the 29 acres into 19 lots. Mr. 
Weintraut discussed the rezonings and plats over the years and changes that were made and 
went over the technical comments regarding the final plat. At this time the recommendation 
from staff is to gather any comments from the Planning and Zoning Commission and public 
and continue the discussion at the next Planning and Zoning meeting on April 27.  

 
 Mr. Larson asked if there was a reason why the item could not be approved at this time. Mr. 

Weintraut stated that it gives the public a chance to make comments. The item was continued 
to the next meeting. 

 
4.) The Commission then considered a minor plat for The Cove at Spruce Hills. Chair Leeper 

introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background information. He explained that the 
property is located north of Greenhill Road and east of Spruce Hills Drive and Prairie Parkway. 
It is proposed to develop a parcel with 30, two-story townhomes with six separate buildings. 
He displayed a rendering that showed private and existing easements and explained that all 
on-site infrastructure will be private and the developer will be responsible for providing and 
maintaining private infrastructure. It will be the responsibility of the developer to add public 
sidewalks and maintain them. Mr. Atodaria discussed the technical comments and discussed 

2

Item 1.



 2 

requirements expected of the developer. He specified that all legal documents will need to be 
signed, stamped and submitted to city staff prior to the case being reviewed by City Council. 
Staff recommends approval of the final plat with any comments or direction from the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and conformance with all city staff and technical requirements. 

 
 Brian Wingert, 2110 Flynn Drive, (developer) asked about the requirements with regard to the 

documents that need to be provided.  
 
 Deb Iehl, 4219 Eastpark Road, stated concerns with the waterway behind the development 

and issues with washout. She asked that the area be restored before work begins. Mr. Wingert 
stated that their work will be a distance from those areas and measures will be taken to stop 
any erosion. Ms. Saul clarified that Ms. Iehl was asking that the area be restored before the 
work begins. Mr. Tolan stated that he will speak with the Director regarding this.  

 
 Mr. Holst made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, 
Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays.  

 
5.) The next item of business was an RP site plan review for The Cove at Spruce Hills. Chair 

Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background information. He explained 
that this item was discussed at the last meeting and briefly reiterated the proposal. Thirty units 
are proposed with 2-story townhome units within six buildings that will be accessed through 
the extension of Spruce Hills Drive to the east and Spruce Creek Drive running north-south. 
He discussed the site layout and private infrastructure. He noted that all setback requirements 
are met and easements will be maintained and managed by the developer. He discussed the 
site access, stormwater management, landscaping, building elevations and technical 
comments. He spoke to the outstanding issues and notes for future residents with regard to 
the site plan. Staff recommends approval with any comments or direction specified by the 
Commission and conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical comments. 

 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the item with the city recommendations. Mr. Holst 

seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman, 
Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 
6.)  The next item of business was an amendment of the RP Master Plan for Autumn Ridge 

Development, which was deferred. 
  
7.) The next item, a preliminary plat for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions was also deferred. 
 
8.) Mr. Weintraut noted the Resilience Plan update was presented to the public and is posted 

online.  
 
9.) As there were no further comments, Ms. Saul made a motion to adjourn. Ms. Lynch seconded 

the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, 
Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:43 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Thomas A. Weintraut       Joanne Goodrich  
Acting Community Services Manager    Administrative Assistant 
 

3

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning Commission 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 
  Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: April 21, 2022 

 SUBJECT: FP22-001 Wild Horse Fifth Addition Final Plat  
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve the Wild Horse Fifth Final Plat. Case #FP22-001 
 

PETITIONER: Midwest Development Co., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 
 

LOCATION: 
 

The property is located south of W. 12st Street and west of Union Road  

 

PROPOSAL 
The petitioner owns a 29.9-acre parcel that is south of W. 12 Street, west of Union Road, and 
with access from Granite Ridge Road. The petitioner proposes to subdivide 8.13 acres of the 
29.9 acres into 19 lots. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City rezoned the entire 148-acre property from A-1, Agriculture to RP, Planned Residential 
for a maximum of 353 dwelling units in 2005.  A Preliminary Plat for this area, called 
“Copperstone” was approved in July 2005. This plat covered the entire 148-acre property and 
proposed the establishment of 242 building lots with 353 units.  The Final Plat for the Wild Horse 
Ridge First Addition was approved in September 2007.  After several alterations to the 
preliminary plat, in 2021, City approved the latest alteration to the Preliminary Plat of Wild Horse 
Ridge, which increased the density of the development from 2.43 to 2.72 units per acre for fifth –
tenth additions by adding 40 duplex lots.  The duplex lots are proposed to be within Eighth and 
Ninth additions.   
 
ANALYSIS  
The petitioner, Midwest Development Co., proposes the final plat of the Fifth Addition, 
comprised of 8.13 acres of land within the middle of the subdivision, which includes connecting 
Wild Horse Drive to Granite Ridge Road.  The property is zoned RP Planned Residential.  The 
RP zoning district permits a variety of residential uses from single-family to multi-family 
dwellings based on a master plan approved at the time of rezoning, which in this case was 
revised and approved in May of 2021.  The Fifth Addition consists of 19 residential lots, all 
intended for single-family residences.   

4

Item 4.



As originally proposed, the petitioner planned to have the Fifth Addition as 15 lots that did not 
include the connection between Wild 
Horse Drive and Granite Ridge Road 
(highlighted in yellow above).  
Engineering Division and the Public 
Safety Department encouraged the 
connection between Wild Horse Drive 
and Granite Ridge Road to increase 
the connectivity of the existing 
subdivision and eliminate a dead end 
on Granite Ridge Road. The 
preliminary plat was approved prior to 
the new code requirements of 
addressing critical infrastructure 
through a phasing plan. Planning Staff 
has no objections to the additional 4 
lots (highlighted in yellow on the right) 
and adding the intersection of Wild 
Horse Drive and Granite Ridge Road.  
The petitioner will connect to the 
existing stormwater detention.  The 
City’s maintenance and repair 
agreement with the owner/developer 
will address maintenance 
responsibilities for the stormwater 

5

Item 4.



management facilities in the subdivision to ensure proper functioning over time.  The setbacks 
shown on the face of the plat are consistent with the proposed setbacks from the approved 
Master Plat and Preliminary subdivision.   
 
The City Code states that the final plat must be in substantial conformance with the preliminary 
plat. The proposed change does not change the density, lot size, or configuration of the lots.  
The proposed change increases safety and connection within the subdivision.  Therefore, staff 
finds that the proposed final plat is conforming with the preliminary plat and associated 
conditions.  The petitioner has met that criterion and the associated conditions.   
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas, 
and communication services are available to the site. The developer extended the utility 
services to the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat satisfy Public 
Works and CFU requirements. 
 
Cluster mailboxes will be sized and placed in the ROW according to USPS standards. All cluster 
mailboxes will be located on lower volume streets and situated to prevent undue traffic 
congestion according to the direction from the City Engineer’s office. 
 
The submitted Deed of Dedication for this final plat is consistent with the previously approved 
Deeds of Dedication from the previous additions and has addressed all the necessary 
requirements.  
 
All the utilities and internal road connections within the proposed subdivision will be dedicated to 
the public. The installed internal infrastructure is able to serve the platted lots with access to 
public streets and right-of-way. The installed utilities are available for development for the 
platted lots. The petitioner’s engineer has submitted a stormwater management plan to the City 
and it has been reviewed by the City Engineer. The City Engineer has determined that the plan 
meets the City’s subdivision requirements. The Engineering Division is awaiting either final 
completion of public improvements or establish a ‘Contract for Completion’ with the Developer 
before all documents required would be submitted for the public improvements and proceeding 
with Council Approval. 
 
City Code requires that sidewalks be installed along all streets within the subdivision.  The 
petitioner has confirmed that sidewalks, built to City standards, will be constructed along the 
frontage of all lots at the time of lot development, as per City requirements. 
 
The property is located outside of the regulated floodplain.   
 
A courtesy mailing was sent to the neighboring property owners on April 5, 2022. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
 
City staff has reviewed the final plat for Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition (FP22-001) and 
recommends approval with the following stipulations: 
 

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2) Conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements.  

6

Item 4.



PLANNING AND ZONING 

Discussion 
4/13/22 
 
 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was the Wild Horse Ridge Fifth 
Addition Final Plat. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided 
background information. He explained that the property is located south of West 12th 
Street and west of Union Road. The petitioner proposes to subdivide 8.13 acres of the 
29 acres into 19 lots. Mr. Weintraut discussed the rezonings and plats over the years 
and changes that were made and went over the technical comments regarding the final 
plat. At this time the recommendation from staff is to gather any comments from the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and public and continue the discussion at the next 
Planning and Zoning meeting on April 27.  

 
Mr. Larson asked if there was a reason why the item could not be approved at this time. 
Mr. Weintraut stated that it gives the public a chance to make comments. The item was 
continued to the next meeting. 

 

Attachments:  

Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition Final Plat  

Location Map 

Deed of Dedication 

Black Hawk County Auditor Approval of Subdivision Name 

7

Item 4.



Ch
err

yw
oo

d D
r

Co
lum

bin
e D

r

W ild Horse Dr

W 12th St

Peters PkwySonoma Dr

Alexis Blvd

Rocky RidgeRd

Tierney Ter

Jakob Cir

Keagles Xing

Newland Dr

Blair Ridge Rd

Granite Ridge Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 12th St

R-1

R-1

RP

A-1

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
April 13, 2022

Final Plat for Wild Horse 5th Addition 
(FP22-001)W Viking

Industrial Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University AveOrchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd S M

ain
 St

Cen ter St

R ainbow Dr

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V i kin

gRd

Gree n h il
lR

d

W Ridgeway Ave

W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

Wa
ver

ly R
d

W 27th St

W Airline Hwy

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St

W Dunkerton Rd

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27

£¤63

£¤218

^
Location

Map

8

Item 4.



9

Item 4.



10

Item 4.



11

Item 4.



12

Item 4.



13

Item 4.



14

Item 4.



15

Item 4.



16

Item 4.



17

Item 4.



18

Item 4.



19

Item 4.



20

Item 4.



21

Item 4.


	Top
	Item 1.	April 13, 2022 Minutes
	04-13-2022 P and Z Minutes

	Item 4.	Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition Final Plat (Case #FP22-001)
	1 PC memo Wild Horse 5th additionf
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 Final Plat Sheet 1
	4 Final Plat Sheet 2
	5 Final Plat Sheet 3
	6 Final Plat Sheet 4
	7 DOD
	8  Subdivision Name Approval

	Bottom

